

Remote invigilation pre-assessment information

Remote invigilation pre-assessment information

Document properties

Version	1.1
Owner/author	Products & Services (Awarding Body)
Supersedes when issued	All previous versions
Date of issue	September 2024
Review date	12 months
Circulation	www.aat.org.uk
Format for circulation	Electronic (PDF)
Classification	UNRESTICTED

Change control

Version no.	Page	Changes made	Date
1.0	All	Document created	March 2024
1.1	Multiple	Updated for full launch of RI assessments	September 2024
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

Associated regulations and policies

Remote invigilation installation and minimum specifications guide

How to schedule remote invigilation assessments

How to access and sit remote invigilation assessments

Remote invigilation live assessment troubleshooting guide

Contents

1.	Introduction	4
2.	Scope and applicability	4
3.	Purpose and objectives	4
4.	Terms and definitions	4
5.	Essential information	4
6.	Are remotely invigilated assessments right for you?	5
7.	Your assessment room	6
8.	Invigilation flags, void policy and malpractice	8
9.	Reasonable adjustments and special consideration requests	9
10.	Scheduling and sitting	9
11.	Post assessment information	11
12.	Contact us	13
App	endix A – invigilator announcement for computer-based assessments (CBAs)	14

1. Introduction

1.1. This guide has been created to inform students (and assessment centres) of the essential pre-assessment information that they need to know before deciding if sitting a remotely invigilated assessment is right for them. Key information is provided on the <u>remote invigilation</u> webpage for students (<u>aat.org.uk/assessment/remote-invigilation-students</u>), and this guide provides further supporting information where applicable.

2. Scope and applicability

2.1. This policy applies to all students who are planning on sitting an AAT assessment remotely. A failure to fully understand the details contained within the above webpage and this guide may prevent the student from accessing their assessment, or significantly delay or disrupt their assessment, the possibility of their result being voided. It may result in investigation and action being taken in line with AAT's Malpractice / Maladministration policy which can be found on the Quality Assurance resources webpage (aat.org.uk/support/quality-assurance/resources).

3. Purpose and objectives

3.1. The purpose of this document is to give additional supporting information to students taking a remotely invigilated assessment, (and AAT approved assessment centre staff).

4. Terms and definitions

- 4.1. RI Remote invigilation
- 4.2. Secure browser the assessment delivery and invigilation recording software
- 4.3. Proctors Whilst not referred to in this guide, PSI's webpages reference their invigilators as 'Proctors'

5. Essential information

5.1. Before deciding to sit an assessment via remote invigilation, it is important that you first read through the information on the remote invigilation webpage for students and this guide, and understand all the requirements, benefits, and limitations of sitting an assessment this way.

Remotely invigilated assessments will not be suitable for everyone, and you may prefer to sit your assessment the normal way.

If you are comfortable with the information contained within the webpage and this guide, your computer meets the minimum and supporting requirements, you can install the required software and sit a practice assessment via it, you should notify your assessment centre to schedule you for a remote invigilation version of the assessment.

6. Are remotely invigilated assessments right for you?

- 6.1. Whilst RI assessments carry a lot of benefits, there are also some limitations that may affect your ability to sit an assessment this way.
- 6.1.1. **Minimum age and consent:** To comply with safeguarding responsibilities, students under 14 years old are **not permitted** to sit RI assessments under any circumstances and cannot be scheduled. Students aged 14 or 15 years old must first have parent / guardian consent prior to being made available for scheduling. Consent, once given, can also be rescinded. A consent form is available on the remote invigilation webpage for students.
- 6.1.2. Assessment availability: RI assessments do not support on-demand scheduling. Instead, assessments must be scheduled a minimum of two days in advance. This is to allow students sufficient time to read through all the necessary guidance, download and install the software, check access to the assessment via a scheduled RI practice assessment, and familiarise themselves with the additional features in these assessments. However, we strongly advise that all of this is done before any live assessment scheduling takes place. Once scheduled, the assessment can be accessed at any time during the day without the need for the invigilator to first unlock it. However, it must be submitted by midnight UK time (GMT/UTD).
- 6.1.3. **Reasonable adjustments:** It will not be possible to support all reasonable adjustment requirements remotely. Whilst extra time requested in advance via the reasonable adjustment process can be supported, others cannot. See section 9 for more information.
- 6.1.4. **Minimum specifications:** If your computer does not meet the minimum or supporting specifications before or during the assessment, or if you are unable to download and install the software required to sit your assessment remotely, or complete any of the pre-assessment checks, you will not be able to take an RI assessment (at least, not on that device). See the Remote invigilation installation and minimum specifications guide and remote invigilation webpage for students for more information.
- 6.1.5. Assessment room: If you are unable to sit in a private room, free from distractions and interruptions, you will not be able to sit remotely invigilated assessments. See section 7 for further details.

- 6.1.6. Invigilation: live invigilation will not be available. Whilst there will be a live chat function supported by our third-party software providers, it will be limited to technical support with the software. This means that assessments cannot be paused, and you will need to self-troubleshoot in the event of a technical issue. You will also be expected to submit an incident report (available on the <u>remote invigilation webpage for students</u>) to notify AAT of any issues that you experience during the assessment see section 11. Whilst you are sitting your assessment, unless there is a dedicated break section, you must not leave the assessment room until you have submitted your assessment.
 - The <u>remote invigilation troubleshooting guide</u> is available for you to access from the Preassessment information screen when you launch your assessment. This will then remain open during your assessment within a separate tab in the secure browser.
- 6.1.7. **Invigilation footage:** Your invigilation footage is recorded, uploaded, then retrospectively reviewed by a panel of invigilators. There is a risk that your assessment result may be voided if the footage contains any use of the prohibited items, flaggable behaviour, malpractice, if there is more than ten minutes of missing footage or if the secure browser was restarted more than twice during the assessment.

7. Your assessment room

- 7.1. You will need a suitable room in which to sit your assessment, free from distractions and interruptions.
- 7.2. No one else should be in the assessment room with you. If there is anyone else in the building, it should be made clear to them that an assessment is in progress to minimise the risk of interruptions, for example by having a notice on the other side of the door.
- 7.3. Where possible, you should have:
 - a stable workstation with sufficient space to work.
 - an adjustable and / or comfortable chair.
 - freedom from glare that might prevent you from seeing what is on the screen.
 - ventilation to cope with the heat generated by equipment.
 - sufficient light.
 - a connected power source to your PC ensure that this remains plugged in and switched on so that your laptop does not run out of battery during the assessment; see void policy section below.
- 7.4. You must not have any posters or notes relating to the assessment, or anything that may advantage you, in the room. Ideally the walls and ceilings should be completely free of posters.
- 7.5. You may have a drink of water in a transparent glass or bottle, with no label on it.
- 7.6. The following items are not permitted during your RI assessment and should be removed from your room prior to starting. Any use of these items can cause your result to be voided:

- Any books or paper, including blank paper, study notes, revision materials, textbooks, course notes, dictionaries (including bilingual)
- pens, pencils, erasers, pencil case
- a physical calculator you will be able to access an online calculator during your assessment
- any form of watch the assessment will contain a timer so that you can manage your time
- computers other than those being used for the assessment
- memory sticks
- headphones, headsets the use of ear plugs are permitted to drown out external noise, as long as they cannot connect to a device.
- TV and / or radio (if it is not possible to remove these, they must be switched off)
- any other form of digital, electronic, recording, programmable or technological / web enabled equipment, including, but not limited to:
 - mobile phones
 - tablets
 - Dictaphones
 - Cameras
 - o iPods, iPads
 - MP3 / 4 players.
- 7.7. You are required to provide photographic proof of identity before you are permitted to take an assessment. Only the following documents are acceptable:
 - current valid (signed) full UK or country of origin passport (including an Irish Passport Card)
 - current valid (signed) national identity (ID) card
 - current valid European Economic Area (EEA) member state ID card
 - current full or provisional UK/EU photocard driving licence or Blue Badge
 - current residency permit issued by the Home Office
 - Current valid CitizenCard
 - identity card bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme hologram (a PASS card)
 - local travel cards or other government issued documents (for specific examples, see: <u>www.electoralcommission.org.uk/voting-and-elections/voter-id/accepted-forms-photo-id/</u>
 id)
- 7.8. If you are using a computer that has two screens, the second screen must be switched off and unplugged. This will be picked up before you are able to access the assessment.

8. Invigilation flags, void policy and malpractice

8.1. Flagged behaviour

The following list includes, but is not limited to, some of the behaviour that will be flagged for further investigation if identified on your assessment video. **Any instances of this behaviour occurring during the assessment can cause your result to be voided:**

- insufficient room scan, photo ID or photo checks
- your photo or video not matching your ID
- accessing non-permitted webpages or third-party software
- the use of any of the non-permitted equipment (see section 7.6 above)
- another person entering your assessment room
- leaving the assessment room outside of a break in the assessment
- looking somewhere else consistently throughout the assessment
- talking
- any loss of footage or sound
- going out of view of the camera
- covering the camera or microphone
- closing the PSI Secure Browser during the assessment
- insufficient lighting
- any attempt, intentionally or unintentionally, to cheat during your assessment

8.2. Void policy

AAT will void an assessment if:

- the outcome of the investigation following any of the above flags being identified during the sitting determines that the integrity and security of the assessment was affected.
- the secure browser was restarted more than once during the assessment and/or there is more than 10 minutes missing invigilation footage, or no saved video footage at all.
- any malpractice is identified.

8.3. Malpractice

You must not print, share, or copy assessment material, assessment content or responses, this includes, but is not limited to:

- Taking photos, videos, or screenshots of live assessment material (under any circumstances)
- Storing live assessment material and work that has been saved to the PC during the assessment
- Sending, forwarding, or replying to emails which contain live assessment material

Unauthorised printing, sharing, or copying of assessment material will be treated as malpractice.

AAT will investigate all instances of malpractice, use of prohibited items, or flaggable behaviour. Any proven cases could lead to sanctions being applied, results being declared invalid, or expulsion from AAT.

9. Reasonable adjustments and special consideration requests

- 9.1. For further general information on reasonable adjustments that can and can't be supported in RI assessments, as well as guidance on when and how to apply for special consideration, please review the <u>Reasonable Adjustments and Special Consideration webpage</u> (<u>aat.org.uk/assessment/adjustments-and-considerations-guidance</u>).
- 9.2. All requests for, and notifications of, reasonable adjustments must continue to be made by your Training Provider or assessment centre scheduling your assessment.

10. Scheduling and sitting

10.1. Assessments must be scheduled in advance

All assessments must be scheduled a minimum of two days in advance to allow sufficient time for you to download and install the software, complete your required checks, and receive a schedule confirmation email from AAT.

This means that you cannot be scheduled for today or tomorrow.

10.2. What needs to be scheduled?

We strongly advise that all students taking RI assessments are:

 first scheduled for the generic RI practice assessment – this will allow you to download and install the software (by launching the assessment from your ATLAS Cloud account), check access to the assessment, and familiarise yourself with the features of this assessment type.

If you are unable to load the RI practice assessment via the secure browser and you are unable to resolve this via the troubleshooting guide, you will not be able to sit an RI assessment on that device. This will most likely occur due to heightened security restrictions on the device, i.e., if you are using a work PC or laptop, and you cannot progress beyond the Security Requirements check.

An RI practice assessment is accessible online via the <u>AAT Lifelong Learning Portal</u> on MyAAT, however this will not contain the pre-assessment checks or whiteboard.

You can read more about these two features in the <u>How to access and sit remotely</u> invigilated assessments guide.

- scheduled for their live assessment upon completion of the above.
 - For assessments that have a 90-minute duration, you can choose if you
 would like to sit one that contains a 15-minute break section halfway through
 or not. If you choose not to have the break, you will not be able to leave your
 PC and room during the sitting.

- All assessments over 90-minutes have an enforced 15-minute break section halfway thorough as standard.
- You do not have to use any or all of your break.

Should you change device, take a software update, or subsequently uninstall the secure browser, we recommend repeating the generic RI practice assessment step.

10.3. Notification

Once scheduled for a live assessment, you will receive an email from AAT confirming the assessment and date. The email will also contain instructions on how to download and install the required software, as well as a link to the remote invigilation webpage.

Please ensure that your email address is up to date by checking and, if necessary, updating your MyAAT account (aat.org.uk/myaat/login).

If it appears that you have not received an email from AAT, check any junk or clutter folders first. If no email has been received after your assessment centre has confirmed that you have been scheduled, please contact them in the first instance or check your ATLAS Cloud catalogue to view the scheduled assessment.

10.4. Email from PSI

If this is your first assessment on ATLAS Cloud, you'll also receive an email from **noreply@psionline.com** with information on how to complete the setup of your ATLAS Cloud account.

10.5. Read the invigilator announcement - see Appendix A.

This would normally be read to you by an Invigilator before you start the assessment. The version in Appendix A has been amended to suit assessments sat via remote invigilation.

10.6. Ensure that you have a suitable and comfortable set up

As you may be sitting an assessment without a break, you should ensure that you are set up to undergo the assessment. You are not allowed to leave the assessment room during the assessment (except during the break section), so you should ensure that you have had a comfort break prior to starting your assessment.

You must ensure that you are always in view of your camera and that there is sufficient lighting in your assessment room, so that you can be clearly seen throughout the assessment. The panel at the top of the secure browser contains a window with your webcam footage – you should ensure that you can be seen clearly during your assessment, particulally if you use a keyboard webcam.

10.7. Launch the troubleshooting guide from the Assessment Pre-information page

In the event of a live assessment issue, you may be required to self-troubleshoot to resolve the issue. When you first launch your assessment, you'll be presented with the Assessment Pre-information page. This will contain a link to the troubleshooting guide which, when clicked, will open within a new tab in the secure browser. You are strongly advised to launch the guide at this stage so that you can access it during the assessment.

- 10.8. Remove all non-permitted equipment from your assessment room, see list in section 7.6.
- 10.9. Headwear is only permitted for religious reasons; no other headwear should be worn during the assessment.
- 10.10. Your invigilated conditions start from the point of launching your assessment via ATLAS Cloud after launching your assessment, you must not access any third-party software, prohibited items, or show any of the behaviours that will get flagged. If you do, this will be captured on your invigilation video and will be investigated by AAT and may lead to your result being voided.

11. Post assessment information

- 11.1. Upon submission, the photos of you and your ID, and the videos of your room scans, webcam recording, and screen recording will be sent to a panel of invigilators who will review the video and either confirm everything is OK or flag any suspected suspicious behaviour, such as cheating.
- 11.2. If your invigilation video is flagged, or if there is any missing footage, AAT will conduct an investigation in line with AAT's Malpractice / Maladministration policy and guidance which can be found on the Quality assurance resources webpage. Your result will be held pending the outcome of the investigation and marking, and you will be contacted by AAT.

11.3. Notifying AAT of a live assessment issue

It is your responsibility as the assessment taker to submit an incident report.

An incident report must be submitted for any issues that occur immediately before or during your assessment which delayed, disrupted, or disadvantaged you. Examples of this include, but are not limited to, suspected content error, screen freezing, power cut, building evacuation, interruption during the assessment, etc.

All incidents must be recorded in an incident report and emailed to cba@aat.org.uk by the person who took the assessment, by the end of the next working day after the assessment.

If you need to submit an incident report, an incident report form can be accessed from the <u>remote invigilation webpage for students</u> and should contain as much information as possible about the issue that occurred, when it occurred, what impact it had and what steps were taken to rectify it.

Incident reports will only be accepted if they are completed by you and submitted on time. No one else should complete an incident report on your behalf.

Once submitted, you will be given a reference number for the incident report and a member of the relevant investigating team will be in touch.

If AAT's investigation of the incident confirms that, through no fault of your own, you were unfairly disadvantaged, AAT will take this into account, where possible, when your performance in the assessment is reviewed.

11.4. Results

Results for wholly computer-marked assessments will be released within 10 business days of your assessment submitting however, on occasion it may be necessary to hold a result for longer pending the conclusion of any required investigation if a flag is raised against your invigilation video.

Results for externally marked assessments will continue to be released within six weeks. For more information visit the Results webpage (aat.org.uk/assessment/cba-five-steps/results).

Once your RI result has been released, you will receive an email notification from AAT.

All released results can be accessed from <u>Your assessment results</u> (<u>aat.org.uk/my-qualifications/results</u>), via your MyAAT account.

If any concerns are raised by the Invigilator as part of their review of your assessment recordings, your result will be held pending an investigation by AAT in line with AAT's Malpractice / Maladministration policy and guidance which can be found on the Quality assurance resources webpage. Your result will be held pending the outcome of the investigation and you will be contacted by AAT.

There is a risk that your assessment result may be voided if the footage contains any use of the prohibited items, flaggable behaviour, malpractice, if there is more than ten minutes of missing footage, or if the secure browser was restarted more than twice during the assessment.

Should you wish to re-sit the assessment, you cannot be re-scheduled until the result for your previous attempt has been released to your MyAAT account.

11.5. Enquiries and Appeals

Following receipt of your result, should you wish to follow the Enquiries & Appeals process, the standard process should be adhered to.

Please read and follow all instructions on the <u>dedicated Enquiries and Appeals webpage</u> (aat.org.uk/assessment/enquiries-and-appeals).

12. Contact us

If you have any further queries regarding the information contained within this document or require support during the installation process, please contact our Customer Service team on:

Telephone: 020 3735 2468 (Lines are open Monday to Friday from 9.00 to 17.00 UK time)

Email: customersupport@aat.org.uk

Appendix A – invigilator announcement for computer-based assessments (CBAs)

The following announcement is an amended version of the one that is usually read out by an Invigilator before the start of an assessment. It has been amended so that only information relevant to remotely invigilated assessments is available to you, given the absence of an invigilator.

You are advised to read this prior to every assessment that you sit via remote invigilation.

You must check and confirm that your details on screen are correct and accept the Terms and Conditions before you can start the assessment.

Once you enter the assessment, you must:

- read all instructions carefully on the pre-assessment page, introduction page and throughout the assessment.
- note the duration of the assessment, stated on the introduction page.
- manage your time during the assessment.

Your assessment timer will not start until you click 'Start Assessment' on the Introduction page.

The following items are not permitted:

- Any books or paper, including blank paper, study notes, revision materials, textbooks, course notes, dictionaries (including bilingual)
- pens, pencils, erasers, pencil case
- a physical calculator you will be able to access an online calculator during your assessment
- any form of watch the assessment will contain a timer so that you can manage your time
- computers other than those being used for the assessment
- memory sticks
- headphones, headsets
- TV and / or radio (if it is not possible to remove these, they must be switched off)
- any other form of digital, electronic, recording, programmable or technological / web enabled equipment, including, but not limited to:
 - o mobile phones
 - o tablets
 - Dictaphones
 - o Cameras
 - o iPods, iPads
 - o MP3 / 4 players.

Talking is not allowed inside the assessment room.

You can view how much time you have remaining via the assessment clock within the assessment. The clock shows on every task page and must be used to help you manage your time during the assessment.

All students must manage their own time.

If your assessment contains a built-in break section, you may only leave the room during the break and for up to 15 minutes. Otherwise, you must not leave the room at all whilst your assessment is in progress as it will not be possible to determine that you have remained under invigilated conditions. Should you leave the room during your assessment outside of the break, your attempt will be voided.

Students are not allowed to print, make copies of, or store the assessment or any of its content onto the PC or any other device.

During the assessment, you must not obtain, or try to obtain, help from another person.

Any student caught on video with any of the non-permitted items, copying from or talking to another person, trying to obtain help from another person, using banned electronic devices, cheating in any way, or committing any act that is considered malpractice will have their assessment video flagged. AAT will investigate all instances of flagged behaviour which will be investigated as malpractice and can result in sanctions or penalties, such as making results invalid, and banning students from taking other assessments for a specific period of time. You result will be held until the investigation has concluded.

AAT 30 Churchill Place London E14 5RE

aat.org.uk